
General Licensing 
Sub-Committee
9 July 2018

Time and venue:

5.30 pm in the Court Room at Eastbourne Town Hall, Grove Road, BN21 4UG

Membership:

Councillor Troy Tester (Chair), Pat Hearn (Chair) and Margaret Robinson (Chair) 

Quorum: 3

Published: Friday, 29 June 2018

Agenda
1 Apologies for absence.  

2 Declarations of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) by members as
required under Section 31 of the Localism Act and of other interests as
required by the Code of Conduct.  

3 Application for a Sexual Entertainment Licence - premises above Embassy 
Nightclub, 2A-2B Pevensey Rd, Eastbourne BN21 3HJ.  (Pages 1 - 100)

Information for the public
Accessibility:  Please note that the venue for this meeting is wheelchair accessible and 
has an induction loop to help people who are hearing impaired. This agenda and 
accompanying reports are published on the Council’s website in PDF format which means 
you can use the “read out loud” facility of Adobe Acrobat Reader.

Filming/Recording: This meeting may be filmed, recorded or broadcast by any 
person or organisation. Anyone wishing to film or record must notify the Chair prior to 
the start of the meeting. Members of the public attending the meeting are deemed to 
have consented to be filmed or recorded, as liability for this is not within the Council’s 
control.

Public participation: Please contact Democratic Services (see end of agenda) for the 
relevant deadlines for registering to speak on a matter which is listed on the agenda if 
applicable.

Public Document Pack



Information for councillors
Disclosure of interests:  Members should declare their interest in a matter at the 
beginning of the meeting. 

In the case of a disclosable pecuniary interest (DPI), if the interest is not registered 
(nor the subject of a pending notification) details of the nature of the interest must be 
reported to the meeting by the member and subsequently notified in writing to the 
Monitoring Officer within 28 days.

If a member has a DPI or other prejudicial interest he/she must leave the room when 
the matter is being considered (unless he/she has obtained a dispensation).

Councillor right of address: Councillors wishing to address the meeting who are not 
members of the committee must notify the Chairman and Democratic Services in 
advance (and no later than immediately prior to the start of the meeting).

Democratic Services
For any further queries regarding this agenda or notification of apologies please 
contact Democratic Services.

Email: committees@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk  

Telephone: 01323 410000

Website: http://www.lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk/ 

 
modern.gov app available
View upcoming public committee documents on your iPad or Android Device with the free 
modern.gov app.

mailto:committees@lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk
http://www.lewes-eastbourne.gov.uk/
https://itunes.apple.com/gb/app/mod.gov/id508417355?mt=8
https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=uk.co.moderngov.modgov&hl=en


Body: General Licensing Sub Committee
Date: 9th July 2018
Subject: Application For a Sexual Entertainment Venue Licence, 

Above Embassy, 2a-2b Pevensey Road, Eastbourne, BN21 
3HJ

Report Of: Danielle Ball, Specialist Advisor (Licensing). 
Ward(s) Devonshire Ward
Purpose To determine an application for a Sexual Entertainment 

Venue Licence.
Contact: Danielle Ball  01323 415333.  

Danielle.ball@lewes-eastbourne.go.uk  

1.0 Introduction & Background

1.1 The scheme for the control of sex establishments by the way of a licensing 
regime is contained in the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1982, as amended by the Policing and Crime Act 2009. The Council has had 
regard to the Home Office Sexual Entertainment Venues Guidance for England 
and Wales (March 2010) (“the Guidance”), included as Appendix 1.

1.2 There is currently one sex shop operating in the Borough of Eastbourne but no 
sexual entertainment venue.

1.3 Eastbourne Borough Council adopted its initial Sex Establishment and Encounter 
Policy (“the Policy”) on the 23rd February 2011 and its current version on the 
9th December 2015. This is included at Appendix 2.

1.4 This premises has a valid premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003 that 
covers

Recorded music Monday to Saturday 18:00- 04:00

Sunday 18:00- 03:00

Performance of Dance Monday to Saturday 18:00 – 04:00

Sunday 18:00 – 03:00

Supply of Alcohol Monday to Saturday 18:00 – 03:30

Sunday 18:00 – 02:30

1.5 Prior to the application being submitted Sussex Police and Eastbourne Borough 
Council Licensing Specialist undertook a site visit of the proposed location.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 

2.0 The Application 

2.1 An application has been received by Eastbourne Borough Council the 
‘Appropriate Authority’, for a Sexual Entertainment Venue Licence. A valid 
application was accepted on the 18th May 2018. A copy of the application is 
included at Appendix 3. 

2.2 Sexual Entertainment Venue is defined as ‘any premises at which relevant 
entertainment is provided before a live audience for the financial gain of the 
organiser or the entertainer.

Relevant Entertainment means

Any live performance or

Any live display of nudity

Which is of such a nature that, ignoring financial gain, it must be reasonable to 
be assumed to be provided solely or principally for the purpose of sexually 
stimulating any member of the audience (whether by verbal or other means).

2.3 The hours that have now been applied for the performance of exotic dancing 
are;

Monday to Saturday 22:00-04:00  

Sunday 22:00- 03:00

3.0 Consultation Process

3.1 The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 requires applicants 
to advertise both on the premises, and in a local newspaper in order to inform 
the public of the application. The site notice is required to be on display for 21 
days and the public have 28 days to make a representation against the 
application in writing. This has been complied with.

3.2 A copy of the application has to be served on the Chief Officer of the Police 
within 7 days of making the application, this was done. The Authority must 
have regard to any observations made by the Police. Sussex Police did make a 
representation concerning this application but the applicant and Police spent 
some time rewording the conditions. Both parties are now content with the new 
conditions and these are included at Appendix 4. The Police’s objection has 
now been withdrawn provided all the agreed conditions are contained within the 
licence, if the licence is granted.

3.3 Eastbourne Borough Councils Noise Specialist and the Fire Authority were 
consulted as part of the application process. No comments were made.

3.4 As a result of the consultation process, one representation has been received 
within the 28 day consultation period on behalf of the Town Centre 
Neighbourhood Panel. The valid part of representation concerns the location of 
the premises. The representation is included at Appendix 5.

3.5 Appendix 6 is a google map to show the proximity between the premises and 
the shopping centre.

Page 2



 

4.0  Considerations

4.1 The Policy and the Guidance attached to this Report outlines the matters that 
the Authority should consider when determining the application and these are 
listed in section 5 of the Policy, of particular relevance are sections 5.7 to 5.10. 
However, each application will be considered on its own merits.

5.0 Options available to Members

5.1 Members may:

Grant the licence subject to such terms and conditions, and restrictions as may 
be specified, or

Refuse the licence.

Any licence that is granted, unless cancelled or revoked, shall remain in force 
for one year or such shorter period as the Members see fit. If the application is 
refused the applicant shall be provided with written reasons for the refusal.

6.0  Appeals

6.1 On refusal of an application there is a restricted appeal process. Any applicant 
who is refused a licence may within 21 days of being notified of the refusal 
appeal to the Magistrates. However, the right of appeal does not apply where 
the licence is refused on the grounds that the number of sexual entertainment 
venues in the area equals or exceeds the number the authority considers 
appropriate for that locality, or if the grant of the licence would be inappropriate 
having regard to the character of the area, the nature of other premises in the 
area, or the layout, character or condition of the premises themselves. 

7.0 Legal Considerations

7.1 In determining the application Members must have regard to the grounds set 
out in the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 Schedule 3 
paragraph 12, as reflected in section 5 of the Policy.

7.2 The Council’s Legal Section considered the contents of this Report on 28 June 
2018 (IKEN 7412-MW). 

8.0 Human Rights

8.1 Human Rights considerations must be taken into account in considering a 
licence application, in particular Articles 8 (respect for private and family life, 
home and correspondence) and 10 (freedom of expression) of the European 
Convention on Human Rights. As these are qualified rights any interference may 
be justified if the action is in accordance with the law, is intended to pursue a 
legitimate purpose for example the prevention of crime and disorder, and is 
necessary and proportionate.

APPENDICES

1. Home Office Sexual Entertainment Venues Guidance for England and Wales 

Page 3



 

(March 2010) 

2. Sex Establishment and Encounter Policy 2015

3: Application for the Sexual Entertainment Venue licence 

4: The amended conditions as agreed by the Police and the applicant. 

5: Representation from Town Centre Neighbourhood Panel. 

6: Street maps showing proximity between Above Embassy and the shopping 
centre

Page 4



Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100


	Agenda
	3 Application for a Sexual Entertainment Licence - premises above Embassy Nightclub, 2A-2B Pevensey Rd, Eastbourne BN21 3HJ.
	Application for a Sexual Entertainment Licence - Appendix 1.
	Application for a Sexual Entertainment Licence - Appendix 2.
	Application for a Sexual Entertainment Licence - Appendix 3.
	Application for a Sexual Entertainment Licence - Appendix 4.


